
AGENDA 
TOWN OF CLAYTON PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

Monday, November 30, 2015  
6:00 PM 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
111 E. SECOND STREET 

For Information: (919) 553-5002 
 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

A. August 2015 Meeting Minutes 
 

IV. REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 13-106-01-SD Hannah’s Creek- Major Subdivision 
Request to add one lot (Lot 78) to the existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision using land 
currently designated as “open space”. 
 

B. 15-50-01-SD Rhodes Farm Subdivision- Major Subdivision 
Request for approval to develop a conventional subdivision with 41 single family 
detached homes. 
 

C. 15-45-03-SUP Hocutt Baptist Western Parking- Special Use Permit 
Request for a special use permit to develop a parking lot to be used for an existing 
church. 
 

D. 15-45-02-SP Hocutt Baptist Church Western Parking Lot- Major Site Plan 
Request for Major Site Plan approval to develop a 58 space parking lot to be used for an 
existing church. 
. 
 

VII. INFORMAL DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

VIII. ADJOURN 

Page 1 of 1 
 



Page 1 of 7 
 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Board Minutes 

August 24, 2015 
 

The regular meeting of the Clayton Planning Board for the month of August was held at  
6:00 PM in Town Hall located at 111 East Second Street. 
 

PRESENT: Frank Price (Chair) (ETJ), George “Bucky” Coats (TL), Ronald L. Johnson (TL), Marty D. 
Bizzell (ETJ), Robert J. Ahlert (TL), Sarah Brooks (TL), David Teem (Vice Chair), James Lipscomb 
(ETJ), Michael Grannis (Council Member), Bob Satterfield (Council Member)  
 

ARRIVED LATE: Jim Lee (ETJ) arrived at 6:26 p.m.  
 

ABSENT: Jean M. Sandaire (TL) [ALT] 
 

STAFF PRESENT: David DeYoung, Planning Director; John McCullen, Town Engineer; Jay 
McLeod, Planner; Haley Hogg, Planner and Christy Anastasi, Deputy Town Clerk. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

Mr. Price called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 

2. ADJUSTMENT TO THE AGENDA: 
 
It was stated that there were no adjustments to the agenda. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

None 
 

4. REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 
 

A. Steeplechase withdrawn by Council 
 

Mr. DeYoung stated that Steeplechase has been withdrawn and explained that Town 
Council had waived the time lapse requirement. Mr. DeYoung stated the applicant may 
be back in about six months. 
Mr. Price asked if the same developers came back would the master plan have to be 
reviewed again and approved again. 



Page 2 of 7 
 

Mr. DeYoung stated the master plan would have to be approved once again. 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Comments on Draft Comprehensive Plan 2040 Update: 
 

Mr. DeYoung stated that the consultant would provide a presentation on the 
Comprehensive Plan 2040 to Town Council on September 8, 2015 followed by public 
comment. If anyone on the Planning Board would have any additional comments and or 
questions to submit them to staff right away. Comments were received by Mr. Alhert.   
 

6. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Hocutt Baptist Church Rezoning, 10-38-01-RZ 
Request to rezone 5.45 acres including and surrounding the current Hocutt Baptist 
Church from Residential-6 and Residential-8 to Office-Institutional. 

 

Mr. Jay McLeod stated that a new process would start tonight, where the applicant 
would present the case and staff would follow with comments. The presentation would 
be provided by Shawn Hine, with Green Engineering. Mr. Hine stated Hocutt Baptist 
Church is the applicant and had recently purchased three houses.  A recommendation 
by Town Staff is to have all property owned by and property that holds “life rights” to be 
rezoned from Residential-6 and Residential-8 to Office-Institutional.  This zoning 
category would work best for future master plan. The location of the rezoning request is 
Northwest corner of Robertson Street and Second Street and the majority of the block 
between Robertson Street and Ellington Street (east and west) and second Street and 
Horne Street. The home located on Robertson Street has been burned down and the lot 
cleared. The church has put stone down for parking. The Northwest piece of the 
property has been withdrawn, still talking with the property owner. This property is 
listed as the last tag number (05023004) on the staff report. Mr. Hine stated this is the 
first step towards a master plan and parking area. Down the road the master plan will 
be to expand the sanctuary, add an educational building and additional parking area. 
The neighborhood meeting was held on August 11, 2015 at 7:00 p.m.  at Hocutt Baptist 
Church.  Several neighbors attended the meeting but, mostly curious about what the 
church was doing. Mr. Hine stated plans would show any parking areas located next to 
residential areas would comply with required appropriate landscape buffering to ensure 
compatibility.  A discussion was held about the current gravel parking area and when 
that area would become a more permanent area for parking. Mr. DeYoung stated 
zoning on the west side of Robertson Street is being closely looked at and additional 



Page 3 of 7 
 

information from staff is needed and will be provided to Town Council. Staff is looking at 
the parking area to become a permanent parking area instead of a gravel parking lot in 
the near future. Due to much of the gravel moving onto the silt fence it is a concern that 
there could be a drainage problem. Mr. Jay McLeod stated staff recommends approval 
of the rezoning from Residential-6 and Residential-8 to Office-Institutional as well as the 
addition of a Special Use District designation over the seven parcels located west of 
Robertson Street. This is consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan. Question if outdoor 
gathering space was to be used would a permit be needed. Mr. Jay McLeod stated no 
permit would be needed. 

 

ACTION:  MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF REZONING 10-38-01-RZ 
Motion:  Ms. Brooks 
Second:  Mr. Coats 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
 

B. Novo-Nordisk Southeast Property Rezoning, 15-37-01-RZ 
Request to rezone the parcels from industrial-Light (I-1, County Zoning) to Industrial-
Light (I-1, Town Zoning), following their inclusion into Clayton’s ETJ by House Bill 343. 
 

Mr. Jay McLeod stated a request to rezone the parcels (180.76 acres) from Industrial-
Light (I-1 County Zoning) to Industrial-Light (I-1, Town Zoning), following their inclusion 
into Clayton’s ETJ by House Bill 343.  Located south of Powhatan Road, east and north of 
the railroad tracks, and southwest of the intersection of Glen Laurel Road and Powhatan 
Road.  These parcels were not part of Clayton’s 2008 Strategic Growth Plan because they 
were not in Clayton’s jurisdiction at the time. These parcels were designated as “Primary 
Growth Areas” via Johnston County’s Future Land Use Map. The properties located 
directly south and west of the subject parcels are included in Clayton’s Strategic Growth 
Plan and are designated to be “Industrial”. The Industrial Light (I-1) zoning district would 
be consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan of Clayton. Question when land is acquired 
from the county does the land need any zoning? Zoning takes place after it becomes 
property of the Town. Mr. Jay McLeod stated that property that is acquired would come 
with no zoning attached. Therefore, it would be zoned after it is acquired. 
 

ACTION:  MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF REZONING 15-37-01-RZ 
             Motion:     Mr. Bizzell 
             Second:      Mr. Teem 
             Vote:           Unanimous    

C. The Arbors II Planned Development Rezoning, 12-05-03-PDD 



Page 4 of 7 
 

Request to rezone the 3.8 +/- acre parcel northwest of the roundabout on Front 
Street from Neighborhood Business (B-3) to Planned Development-Residential 
 (PD-R), for into The Arbors Planned Development. 

 
 

D. The Arbors II Planned Development Major Site Plan, 12-05-02-SP 
Request for major site plan approval for three new residential apartment buildings 
(72 units) on 3.8 +/- acres adjacent to the existing Arbors I apartments at East Village. 

 

Mr. Bizzell has recused himself from the Arbors at East Village Phase II. 
 
Mr. Michael McCarty with Capp Development Group stated he would be presenting the 
request for rezoning and major site plan. The project location is at the intersection of 
East Front Street and Bent Branch Loop. Request rezoning of 3.76 acres from 
neighborhood Business (B-3) to Planned Development-Residential (PD-R) in anticipation 
of an extension of apartment buildings. A request for three additional residential 
apartment buildings with 72 units adjacent to the existing Arbors at East Village. The 
location of the three new buildings would be located at the left side of the roundabout 
at the entrance of the Arbors. These apartments will consist of 1, 2, and 3 bedroom 
units with 138 required parking spaces. Proposed are 142 parking spaces. Two access 
points will be provided. One new driveway off of East Front Street, and the second 
Arbors Phase I. Recreation and open space requirements are met with about 32% of this 
site being open space.   
 
Mr. Jim Lee arrived at 6:27PM. 
 
The new buildings would match existing buildings in Phase I of the Arbors.  
Applicant is requesting a modified 15-foot Class C buffer with the removal of a six foot 
fence, hedge, berm or combination along East Front Street. Staff is recommending a 
continuous hedge and formal planting arrangement that would be similar to the Bent 
Branch Loop entrance.  After completion there should be no difference between Phase I 
and Phase II as far as architecture and landscape. Question about handicap parking 
spaces? There are two per building. Question about open areas, where these would be 
located and if benches and or tables will be provided.  Open areas would be located 
between building one and two there will be an area where benches with tables will be 
provided for residents. Question will garages be provided for Phase II? There are 55 
garage units for Phase I. However, there will be no garages for Phase II.  
What is the average cost of the units? Mid to upper 90’s is the average cost. 



Page 5 of 7 
 

Mr. Dave DeYoung stated staff added a small 1,600 foot area asking to amend for a total 
of 4.1 acres and not 3.76. Mr. DeYoung stated this 1,600 foot area currently is zoned B2 
and this small area should also should be rezoned to Planned Development-Residential 
(PD-R). With making your recommendation please consider the 1,600 foot area as part 
of this request.  Water and sewer will be provided by Town of Clayton. The current sign 
located by the clubhouse will be upgraded and moved to the roundabout area. Staff is 
recommending approval with conditions of the proposed Major Site Plan.   

 

ACTION:    MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF REZONING 12-05-03-PDD 
Motion:   Mr. Ahlert 

 Second:  Mr. Johnson 
Vote:   Unanimous   
 
 

ACTION:  MOTION FOR APPROVAL FOR WAIVER SECTION 155.402 E TO 
ALLOW ALTERNATIVE LANDSCAPING   

Motion:  Mr. Johnson 
Second:  Mr. Teem 

 Vote:   Unanimous 
 
 

ACTION:   MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF MAJOR SITE PLAN 12-05-02-SP 
Motion:  Ms. Brooks 
Second:  Mr. Teem     
Vote:   Unanimous 
 

Mr. Bizzell rejoined the board and Mr. Lipscomb recused himself from the Fisher Street 
Two-Family Home. 
 

E. Fisher Street Two-Family Home Special Use Permit, 15-39-01-SP 
Request for a Special Use Permit to allow development of a two-family home in a 
Residential-8 existing neighborhood. 
 

Mr. DeYoung stated the applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to develop a two-
family home into an R-8 zoning district. The location of this property is 501 Fisher Street, 
adjacent to Andrews Street and Starling Street. The proposed building will be a total of 
2,148 square feet. One unit will be accessible from Fisher Street and a separate 
basement unit accessible from Starling Street. There will be two separate driveways for 
residents. No buffering is required however the applicant has provided street trees 



Page 6 of 7 
 

which are adequate for proposed site plan. The reason for the Minor Site Plan is 
because all Special Use Permits are accompanied by a Minor Site Plan. In order to have a 
two family unit under the current zoning a single family unit with a mother-in-law unit a 
stove cannot be added, with the SUP a stove can be added to both units. Normally no 
action would have to be taken. Staff recommendation is approval.   
Mr. James Lipscomb provided an overview of the design. Plans would be to rent the 
home. Mr. Lipscomb stated a nice new home will be an improvement from a vacant lot. 
Mr. Lipscomb stated the home will have extra landscaping and will provide two 
driveways. Question was asked whether each driveway would hold two cars.  Mr. 
Lipscomb stated he would try his best to make it happen. 

 

       ACTION:  MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF SPECIAL USE PERMIT 15-39-01-SUP 
      Motion:  Mr. Lee 
      Second:             Mr. Alhert 
      Vote:  Unanimous 
 

F. Fisher Street Two-Family Home Site Plan, 15-39-02-SPM 
Request for approval of a minor site plan (accompanying a special use permit 
application) for a two-family home in an existing residential neighborhood. 
 
ACTION:  MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF MINOR SITE PLAN 15-39-02-SPM 
Motion:  Mr. Coats 
Second:  Mr. Teem 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
Mr. Lipscomb rejoined the board. 
 

7.  INFORMAL DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
No discussion and or public comments were made. 
 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

ACTION:  ADJOURNMENT 
Motion:  Mr. Teem 
Second:  Mr. Coats 
Vote:   Unanimous 
 

With there being nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 



Page 7 of 7 
 

X
Frank Price
Planning Board Chairman

 

X
Christy Anastasi
Deputy Town Clerk

 



 
 
 
 

 
November 30, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 13-106-01-SD 
Project Name: Hannah’s Creek Lot 78 – Major Subdivision 

 
 
NC PIN / Tag #: 165803-21-4008 / 05g03015i 
Town Limits/ETJ: ETJ 
Overlay: Scenic Highway Overlay 
Applicant:  Curk Lane  
Owner: Darryl D. Evans 
Location: The property is located in the existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision, south of the intersection 

of Corvina Drive, Concord Court, and Vinyard Drive. 
 
Public Noticing:  
• Neighborhood meeting October 14, 2015 
• Sign posted October 16, 2015 
• Letters mailed prior to December 22, 2015 
• Newspaper ad posted prior to December 23, 2015 
 
REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting preliminary subdivision plat approval to add one lot (Lot 78) to the 
existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision. 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 6 
 



Staff Report 
13-106-01-SD 

 
SITE DATA: 
Parcel Acreage:   11.89 acres  
Proposed Lot 78 Acreage: 1.3± acres (to be subdivided from the Parcel Acreage) 
Existing Use:   Agriculture 
 
 
ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 
South Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 
East Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 
West Residential-Estate (R-E) Residential subdivision (Hannah’s Creek) 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Existing Uses: 77 lot single family subdivision 

Proposed Uses: Single family residential dwelling 

Buildings: One  

Number of Stories: Maximum height of 35 feet 

Impervious Surface: Maximum 4,288 SF – which is identical to adjacent lots in subdivision.  

Required Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Proposed Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Access/Streets:  New driveway off of Concord Court 

Water/Sewer Provider: Public water and septic 

Fire Protection: Town of Clayton Fire Department 

 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 
 



 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat (major subdivision) approval to add one lot (Lot 78) to an existing 
subdivision. This subdivision utilizes septic fields, and is generally limited in density by the availability of soil that 
will accommodate septic drain fields. With the completion of the platting of Phase 3 of Hannah’s Creek 
subdivision, the developer has found additional land that will accommodate a septic field, and is proposing to 
use that land to add one more lot to the subdivision. 
 
The original Preliminary Subdivision Approval from the County identifies the tract of land that Lot 78 will be 
separated from as “Permanent Open Space”. All recorded Plat Book pages for this site identify this parcel as 
“Reserved for Future Development”.   The granting of the creation of Lot 78 will reduce the overall open space 
available for the subdivision. 
 
In 2014, a minor subdivision application was approved for this site by the Planning Department. This minor 
subdivision was granted administratively (as allowed by Code) based on the recorded Plat Book images, which 
designate the land that Lot 78 will be separated from as “Reserved for Future Development”. The original, 
preliminary subdivision approval from the County (which shows “Permanent Open Space”) was not consulted at 
the time this approval was granted. Staff believes that a clerical error occurred at the County during the plating 
process, and the plat reviewer missed that the area shown as “Permanent Open Space” and allowed it to be 
recorded as “Reserved for Future Development”.  Since Hannah’s Creek is an existing subdivision, it was 
determined that the addition of a lot (Lot 78) should have triggered a major subdivision application which 
requires approval by Town Council. The 2014 minor subdivision approval was recently determined by the 
Planning Director to have been issued in error. To rectify this, the developer agreed to pursue a major 
subdivision application in order to create Lot 78. Major subdivision applications require neighborhood meetings, 
and are decided in a quasi-judicial hearing by Town Council. 
 
Consistency with Adopted Plans: 

• Comprehensive Plan 2040 
The request is consistent. 

 
• Master Plan (if any) 

The request is not consistent with the Preliminary Plat Approval that was issued by the County in 2006, 
which show the parcel as “Permanent Open Space”. This approval in the County occurred before the 
subdivision and this parcel were incorporated into Clayton’s ETJ in 2008.  
 
The request is consistent with the current recorded Plat Book which designates the area as “Reserved 
for Future Development”.  

 
• Unified Development Code 

The proposed development will be consistent with the Unified Development Code (UDC).  Individual lot 
development specifications including building placement, driveway placement, etc. will be required to 
meet all Town standards.  

 

Page 3 of 6 
 
 



 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
Uses surrounding the subject property are identical to what is being proposed on Lot 78. 
 
Landscaping and Buffering 
N/A. 
 
Recreation and Open Space 
When this development was approved in the County, the required open space for an open space subdivision 
was 10%. Per Town of Clayton UDC, the required open space of a comparable open space subdivision is 12.5% of 
net site area. Net site area excludes Resource Conservation Areas from the calculation. This new addition to the 
existing Hannah’s Creek subdivision occurs on land that was originally intended as open space for the 
subdivision.  
 
As of the writing of this staff report, enough information is not available in order to determine if the addition of 
another lot meets the 12.5% open space requirement. The addition of lots must meet the Town requirement for 
open space. 
 
According to correspondence with the applicant, no recreation fees were ever paid to the County. This indicates 
that this subdivision was approved as an open space subdivision, and the provision of open space was a 
requirement of the original approval. 
 
As part of this application, the developer has proposed to add a natural surface “nature trail” through the 
remaining open space south of the proposed Lot 78. This trail would have two access points, each of which 
would be 30’ pedestrian easements, as required by Code. The easement alongside Lot 78 would coincide with an 
existing 20’ wide drainage easement. 
 
Environmental  
N/A 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 
 



 
Access/Streets  
Access will be provided via a new driveway off of Concord Court. 

 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
None. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

• The applicant is requesting Preliminary Subdivision Plat approval for Lot 78.   
• This approval is subject to approval of SUP 2013-71.   

 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
The applicant has addressed the Major Subdivision Approval Criteria outlined in UDC Section 155.706.  The 
applicant’s Findings of Fact are incorporated into the record as an attachment to the Staff Report. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff  
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
If approved, staff recommends the following conditions be applied: 
 

1. The Conditions of Approval shall be inserted into the Site Plan, and three clean copies shall be delivered 
to the Planning Department for final approval. 

2. The final plat and subsequent development of the site shall be consistent with the specifications of the 
approved Preliminary Subdivision Plan.  

3. All development fees shall be paid prior to final plat recordation, except that Capacity fees shall be paid 
prior to issuance of building permits. 

4. The nature trail shall be constructed or bonded prior to the issuance of building permits. 

5. Any proposed pedestrian easements shall be revised so as to not overlap drainage easements. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1) Application and application materials, including site plan 
2) Staff report maps 
3) Neighborhood meeting materials from applicant 
4) Preliminary subdivision approval from County (approved 2006) 

Page 5 of 6 
 
 



5) Plat book images 
6) Minor subdivision approval (approved 2014)  
7) Materials from Hannah’s Creek HOA 

a. letter of opposition, petition, and neighborhood meeting minutes – Hannah’s Creek Community 
b. Letter of opposition – Katherine Pagano 
c. Letter of opposition – Steve Warren 
d. Letter regarding proposal – Josh Carlisle 
e. Stream buffer determination – Div. of Water Quality 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 
 













































US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

CONCORD CT  

STEPHANIE LN  
CH

AR
DO

NN
EY

 DR
  

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

CONCORD CT  CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

LIN
'S 

PL
  

13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Lot 78 Major Subdivision
Request: Approval to add one lot to existing Hannah's Creek subdivision
Applicant: Curk Lane
Property Owner: Darryl D. Evans
Parcel ID Number: 165803-21-4008
Tag #: 05g03015i

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

SC
OT

T C
T  

NIKOL WAY  

CONCORD CT  

0 0.350.175
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 1,000500
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SUBDIVISIONS\MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS\2015\13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Major Subdivision Modification\Maps\StaffReportMap.mxd

US 70 HWY W BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

CONCORD CT  

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CA
BE

RN
ET

 C
T  

LIN
'S 

PL
  

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 950475
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

± ±

± ±

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

Produced by: TOC Planning
10/15/2015

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay



US 70 HWY W BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 CA

BE
RN

ET
 C

T  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

US 70 HWY W

CORVINA DR  

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 CA

BE
RN

ET
 C

T  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

MERLOT CT  

13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Lot 78 Major Subdivision
Request: Approval to add one lot to existing Hannah's Creek subdivision
Applicant: Curk Lane
Property Owner: Darryl D. Evans
Parcel ID Number: 165803-21-4008
Tag #: 05g03015i

US 70 HWY W

BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

0 0.30.15
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 900450
Feet

0 900450
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SUBDIVISIONS\MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS\2015\13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek Major Subdivision Modification\Maps\StaffReportMap2.mxd

CA
BE

RN
ET

 CT
  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  

CONCORD CT  

CH
AR

DO
NN

EY
 DR

  

US 70 HWY W BA
RB

ER
 M

ILL
 R

D 
 CA

BE
RN

ET
 C

T  

MA
RS

H 
CT

  MEADOW CT  

CORVINA DR  
Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 600300
Feet

0 900450
Feet

± ±

± ±

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

Produced by: TOC Planning
10/15/2015

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay































































































 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
March 4, 2014 
 
Curk Lane 
True Line Surveying 
205 W Main Street 
Clayton, NC 27520 
 
 
Re:  MSD 2014-07 Hannah’s Creek Subdivision Minor Modification 
 
 
Dear Mr. Lane, 
 
On February 18, 2014, the Planning Director approved the above referenced modification to the 
previously approved subdivision (Hannah’s Creek Phase 1) subject to the following conditions of 
approval:    
 

1. The development of the site is limited to the site design and uses approved by the 
Planning Director (plans with stamped approval dated 2/18/14). Modifications of 
the approved plans shall require additional review and approval, subject to 
requirements of the Unified Development Code. 
 

Thank you for your cooperation in the review and approval process for this development.  If you 
should have any questions regarding this matter please feel free to contact the Planning 
Department. 
 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Emily Beddingfield, AICP 
Town Planner 
 
 
cc:  Beth Franson, GIS Analyst 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 1 of 1 
 





1

Jay McLeod

From: Keith Pagano <keithpagano@aol.com>
Sent: Monday, October 19, 2015 1:04 PM
To: Jay McLeod
Subject: Hannah's Creek Community plea
Attachments: Hannahs Creek Community Letter_10192015_final.pdf; HC petition.pdf; True Line 

Meeting Minutes_10142015_final2.pdf; Attachment #1 - 13-106-01-SD Hannah's Creek 
Application.pdf; Attachment #2 - HTR Marketing .pdf

Hi Jay, 

 
Attached, please find the Hannah's Creek Community submission of concern in response to the  Major Subdivision 
application submittal by Darryl D Evans Inc. 

 
We respectfully request that you share the attached information with the Town Planning Board in preparation for the 
October 26, 2015 Public Hearing. 

  

We respectfully request that James Libscomb recuse himself from this application process as we deem it to be a conflict 
of interest as he is an ETJ Alternate, Town Planning Board member and the listing Realtor representing homes for sale 
within the Hannah's Creek subdivision. 

  

Best regards, 

  

Hannah's Creek Community 



10/19/2015 
 
Greetings Town of Clayton Planning Board, 
 
The neighborhood of Hannah's Creek respectfully submits the following to the Town of Clayton Planning 
Board (Planning Board) to be considered prior to the meeting to be held Monday, October 26, 2015 to 
discuss Darryl D. Evan’s Major Subdivision application for the Hannah’s Creek Subdivision. The following 
is meant to be a summary of our community’s concerns regarding the application for Major Subdivision 
by Darryl D Evans, Inc. for the proposed Lot 78.   The items presented in this letter relate to both 
environmental concerns regarding the prospective changes to support proposed Lot 78 as well as the 
verbal commitments made by Darryl D Evans, Inc. over the last decade to use the proposed Lot 78 as the 
common area for the community.  
  
Many community members (especially in properties near the proposed Lot 78) have drainage and 
related environmental concerns regarding the proposed lot change. Some of these concerns have come 
to light following the meeting with True Line.  The major points of contention related to this concern 
include: 
  
 Many properties that border proposed lot 78, the wetlands, and “new” common area  have 

frequent water drainage issues and are concerned this could potentially make them worse.  
Properties that do not border the immediate proposed lot #78 have also expressed that there are 
drainage issues with their properties and are concerned that the additional lot could cause 
additional drainage issues. 
 

 The major subdivision application insufficiently addresses concerns with answers to important 
questions that are part of the Major Subdivision - Preliminary Plat Requirements checklist.  Instead 
of providing clear answers they are instead marked as "N\A”. Some examples of these questions 
include 31, 39,  41, 42,48, 49, 54  of the Major Subdivision application submitted by Darryl D. 
Evans, Inc (See Attachment #1 – Hannah’s Creek Subdivision Major Subdivision application). 
 

 Will the storm water conveyance and retention with this proposed change be adequate for 
pollution, sewage, and water flow control to prevent flooding and or contamination of nearby 
structure and properties? 
 

 There is concern that the percolation tests were conducted at a time of unusual drought and not 
indicative of actual typical environment conditions experienced in our neighborhood. 
 

 There are concerns that having a septic field so close to other property owners back yards, 
wetlands, and areas that experience water drainage issues that problems could results in serious 
environment and health concerns. 

 
Due to the incompleteness of important questions on the form, there are concerns that there could be a   
negative environmental impact to the community. 
  
Additionally, a major source of contention regarding the proposed Lot 78 is that Darry D Evans, Inc. had 
made commitments to the community that proposed lot #78 was a neighborhood common area that 
would be used as a common area for development by the HOA.  Buyers through all three phases of 
development of Hannah's Creek were consistently told that the property in question was to be the 



common area.  Specifically, it was suggested that the residents of Hannah’s Creek could use that 
property for a playground, pool, or whatever the desires of the HOA. For many buyers this was a 
significant selling point and led to their choice in purchasing a home in Hannah's Creek because 
comparable nearby neighborhoods had developed community common areas.  This commitment to 
buyers continued even after Darry D Evans, Inc. made plans for the proposed Lot 78.  Over the years, 
this was reinforced by HOA Dues used to insure and maintain the property.  Additionally, sales material 
continued to indicate the space was open space and/or permanent open space (see Attachment # 2 – 
Platt Maps). In many cases this commitment was made by HTR Realty, representatives of Darryl D. Evans 
Inc.  In some cases, personal conversations with Darryl Evans were made to community members during 
and/or after the sales process. Although Hannah’s Creek Subdivision development was delayed, it was 
never suggested that the community common area (now proposed lot 78) would ever be anything other 
than an eventual developed common area.   The proposed change of status of proposed lot #78 was 
never communicated to the community directly or through the Home Owners Association.  The HOA 
indicated as recently as the last community meeting that the lot was still available for future HOA 
development pending funding by the HOA. 
  
In response to our concerns Darryl D. Evans, Inc. has proposed an alternate common area indicated as a 
"nature trail".  However, the proposed area is very problematic for numerous reasons and far from a fair 
exchange.  The proposed "nature trail" resides within a very undesirable location including wet, swampy 
and muddy areas.  Parts of the proposed "nature trail" are classified restricted wetlands, cannot be 
developed, and has limited accessibility through easements mostly encompassing drainage easements 
and gas pipeline easements.  There are additional concerns over safety, dangerous refuse that still exists 
in the area, and the high cost of the very limited development that could be done within that proposed 
common area. The proposed area does not allow any type of development beyond a dirt trail.  The 
current lot is centrally located, convenient, ready for development, and safe and easy to secure -  a far 
cry from the proposed common area which is exactly why it was so attractive to current and prospective 
buyers to the community.  Lastly community members have concern over home value for a 
neighborhood such as ours with $300k+ homes without an attractive common area and no potential for 
one in the future.   
  
Over the years the community has waited patiently for the development of the common area despite 
routinely being told that we should wait for future phases of the neighborhood to be completed. After 
so many years the community feels deceived by Darryl D Evans Inc. and that Darryl D Evans Inc. has 
reneged on his commitments to the community.  Additionally, the proposed lot 78 has continued to be 
advertised as a common area even after plans were already made to develop a house on the current 
common area.  Hannah's Creek community has majority support for the position stated in this letter as 
demonstrated by a petition letter recently submitted to Darryl D Evans, Inc. and by the universal 
response at the True Line Neighborhood meeting.  Throughout this process, and in unrelated dealings, 
Darryl D Evans Inc. has routinely responded to inquiries in an unhelpful, vague, callous, and dismissive 
manner as was plainly demonstrated at the True Line Neighborhood meeting.  
  
With all of these factors in mind, the Hannah's Creek community feels that approval of this request by 
Darryl D Evans Inc. would be a detriment to the community and cause for potential environmental 
concerns. For the good of our community we would respectfully request that you deny Darry D. Evans 
Inc.'s application for Major Subdivision. 
  
Respectfully, 
  



Hannah's Creek Community 
  
 



1 
 

True Line Meeting Minutes (submitted by Hannah's Creek Community) 

Meeting held Oct 14, 2015 at 6pm in Hayes room at the Clayton Center due to insufficient space at True 

Line for those in attendance.  

Those in attendance: Approximately 40 Hannah's Creek residents (signatures of everyone in attendance 

obtained by Curk Lane from True Line Surveying), Curk Lane (True Line Surveying), Darryl D. Evans 

(developer), Lawyer (name unknown) representing Mr. Evans, Darryl D. Evans father, James Lipscomb 

(realtor from Home Towne Realty), Jay McLeod (Planner from Town of Clayton), Drew Jackson (staff 

writer for Clayton News Star). 

Purpose of Meeting: To satisfy Town of Clayton regulations placed upon Darryl D. Evans, Inc. to provide 

information to area residents impacted by its land use proposal. Meeting was to provide information to 

residents regarding the nature of the proposal, explain the application, answer questions, and solicit 

comments. 

Topics: 

1. Explanation of proposed plan to increase Hannah’s Creek’s from 77 Lots to 78 lots. 

True Line Surveying (Curk Lane) presented Darryl D. Evans, Inc.’s proposal for adding a new proposed lot 

to the Hannah’s Creek Subdivision.  This is referred to as Lot 78 on the submitted application.   Mr. 

Lane explained that phase 1 and phase 2 of s/d were under Johnston Co jurisdiction and that phase 3 

had to be approved by Town of Clayton due to ETJ. Mr. Lane explained that proposed lot #78 was 

originally undeveloped due to not having enough perkable land in phases 1 and 2.  Mr. Lane informed 

that once land was purchased and acquired for phase 3, there was enough perkable space now for 

proposed lot #78 to be built. Mr. Lane informed residents that the septic lines for proposed lot 78 will be 

in the land that was acquired in phase 3. He explained that adding proposed lot 78 would require a 

Major Subdivision application and approval from the Town of Clayton instead of a Minor Subdivision 

classification as was originally submitted.  

Curk Lane and Darryl Evans explained that at the outset of developing the neighborhood, Lot 55’s overall 

space extended substantially further back to abut up to Highway 70. At that time, Lot 55’s septic was 

obligated to be set further back closer to Highway 70 (in relation to where Lot 55’s residence now sits); 

however, as time has passed, that obligation is now not in effect anymore. Thus this allowed for the 

additional space located closer to Highway 70 (originally within Lot 55’s parameters) to be changed. This 

change now constituted making this tract of land (formerly within Lot 55) the open and recreational use 

space for residents and in turn making proposed Lot 78 available for construction of a new house. 

2. Land advertised and marketed as common area to residents and potential buyers.  

Numerous residents in attendance stated that proposed lot 78 has always been portrayed as common 

area for the entire community of Hannah’s Creek.  Residents provided recollection of Mr. Evans and 

HTR realtors (James Lipscomb and Jerry Jones) personally referring to this area as the subdivision’s 

common area during the sale of their respective homes.  Residents stated that they were told by Mr. 



2 
 

Evans and realtors, Mr. Lipscomb and Mr. Jones, that the land could potentially have a playground built 

on it or that the residents could build a pool on it if they desired. Resident Joshua Carlisle (phase 1), 

stated that Mr. Evans told him the residents would be able to decide what they wanted to use the 

common area for once there were enough homes in the s/d and thus, enough HOA dues collected to use 

for such decision. 

Resident Malinda Johnson (phase 1) introduced herself and her husband to Mr. Evans, and stated they 

were the first home buyers in the s/d.  She asked of Mr. Evans, "Do you remember us?" to which Mr. 

Evans answered "yes".  She stated and directed to Mr. Evans that he told her (and Jay Johnson) face to 

face, that the tract of land currently proposed as lot 78, was our common area and a playground would 

be placed on the property for resident use. She asked Mr. Evans if he remembered saying this to them.  

Mr. Evans shrugged his shoulders and stated "Did you get it in writing?"  Mr. Evans also remarked, that 

he may have mentioned that in general conversation. 

Resident, Misty Jackson (phase 1), stated that a plat map proposing Lot 78 was constructed on Dec 15, 

2013 and informed Mr. Evans that multiple residents from phase 3, whom purchased after this date, 

were still being told that the tract of land was a common area for the residents of the subdivision by his 

representatives from HTR. When Mr. Evans was asked why this happened, he stated that was HTR's fault 

and he didn't know why they advertised it that way. Mr. Evans was asked directly if he informed the 

realtors (Mr. Lipscomb and Mr. Jones) that the tract of land was not to be a common area any longer. He 

replied he never informed them of this change. When asked why he didn't notify HTR, he stated "The 

plats are public record. They can go to Smithfield and look at them." Residents in attendance were upset 

by this response and many stated that it was not feasible or obligatory to remain up to date with plat 

changes – public record or not. Mr. Evan’s veracity and candor were questioned time and again as to 

why what he and/or his contractors/real estate agents told residents at that time was now being 

changed for Mr. Evan’s financial benefit. 

Mr. Evans said multiple times that proposed Lot 78 was listed as reserved for future construction.  

When informed that some surveys and plats, that are registered, label the area as open space, he 

shrugged his shoulders.  Mr. Evans was informed and shown a survey map that was available in the 

marketing mailbox at the front of s/d for potential buyers.  Map showed the land to be "open space".  

When asked why it was advertised this way, he blamed HTR for advertising it in error. Several residents 

questioned time and again whether the verbal advertisement of “common area” (proposed Lot 78) as a 

future playground or pool was a binding contract.  

As more and more residents stated they were always told the land was our common area, Mr. Evans 

replied multiple times "I couldn't know what might happen with that land 10 years later." 

3. Proposed new open space plan presented to residents.   

With the new proposed lot #78, Mr. Evans informed residents that he would be constructing a nature 

trail between proposed Lot 78 and Lot 52 for residents to access the proposed open space.  A 

preliminary plat map was presented by Mr. Lane. Residents asked how the nature trail would be 

constructed and for more details.  Mr. Evans responded it would be "natural" and that there would not 



3 
 

be any asphalt or concrete used in its construction due to impervious surface requirements. Residents 

asked for specifics for the nature trail's construction.  Mr. Evans never answered. Mr. Evans informed 

residents that the 20 ft drainage easement would be included in the required 30 ft access to open space. 

Majority of proposed open space is located on opposite side of the wetlands.  Mr. Evans notified he 

would not be constructing a bridge for residents to have access to the open space.  He informed the 

residents they could walk through the wetlands to obtain access to proposed open space.  This open 

space is located on the southeast of the subdivision corner abutting Hwy 70 and the Piedmont gas 

pipeline. 

Mr. Evans informed that the open space would be deeded to the HOA after he completes the s/d.  

Residents voiced concern about how the homeowners (HOA) would maintain these proposed open 

spaces, not knowing how wide the nature path would be in order to get mowers through and not having 

access to the open space, landlocked by the wetlands.  Concern was also expressed over the expense 

of such upkeep to the HOA once it is deeded over. Malinda and Jay Johnson explained that Caterpillar, 

his local employer, attempted to install a similar nature path walkway on their facility grounds and 

quickly determined the maintenance was too much to adequately handle. The weed growth became a 

major problem and Caterpillar ultimately decided to cancel any further maintenance. Many residents 

complained the proposed nature trail Mr. Evans had planned would end up with the same results. 

Residents voiced that the new proposed open space was not a fair, comparable, or suitable exchange for 

the land that was now advertised as the common area.  

Many residents voiced concern over the open space being adjacent to wetlands and going through 

woods that are tick and snake infested. Concern was raised that the only flat, not waterlogged, tick or 

snake infested proposed open space is located on the Piedmont Natural Gas line easement and that 

nothing permanent would be able to be constructed there.  Concern was raised that a bulk of the 

proposed open space is not usable space, and that Mr. Evans had proposed deeding over land that will 

not be able to serve its intended purpose of a recreational space for residents.   

4. Reimbursement of HOA funds  

Residents voiced that HOA funds had been used for years to maintain lawn and carry liability insurance 

for the tract of land thought to be a common area, but was always owned by Mr. Evans. Further 

discussion arose of how some years back the proposed Lot 78, which the residents believed to be their 

common area, contained large dirt piles. After a long period of time residents complained that the dirt 

piles needed to be removed. Mr. Evans explained he removed the dirt piles as requested by the 

residents and that when he turned over the maintenance of the neighborhood’s entrance and the 

“common area” (proposed lot 78) to Kohn Ell, he ensured that it would be kept visibly nice. Mr. Evans 

explained he did this for the residents; however, if it were up to him he would have simply 

“bushwhacked” the grass twice a year which would have been less cost. Residents countered Mr. Evans’ 

claim that keeping the proposed Lot 78 groomed and visibly nice innately helped him with selling more 

properties in the neighborhood.  If he left the area unkempt and overgrown he would be in violation of 

the covenants. 



4 
 

Residents asked Mr. Evans if he would be reimbursing the HOA for these expenditures. Mr. Evans 

responded he would reimburse the HOA, but was not obligated to. This contention of not having to 

reimburse the funds was seconded by one of Mr. Evan’s representatives. No monetary amount was 

discussed or agreed upon. 

Resident Kathi Pagano raised the concern that the community has not received the HOA annual 

financials from 2006 to 2012.  Mr. Evans stated that no one ever asked for them.  Resident Gerald Lee 

stated that he had.  Ms. Pagano stated she had asked in the first HOA meeting.  Mr. Evans stated that 

we could obtain them from Kohn-Ell. Ms. Pagano replied “back to 2006?”  Mr. Evans replied “yes”.  

Ms. Pagano said “I had already asked Kohn-Ell for them and they said they do not have them prior to 

2013.”  Mr. Evans replied “Well, I’m not an accountant.”     

5. Increased potential for more crime in Hannah's Creek 

Mr. Evans was informed that homes adjacent to the gravel road side of s/d have been accessed from the 

rear and broken into due to the ease of access from the gravel road.  It was also notified that car 

break-ins and theft increased when the 70 bypass was constructed due to ease of access.  Concern was 

raised that adding a nature trail that runs directly behind the homes on Chardonney Drive and Concord 

Court could potentially increase ease of access for crime to occur.  

6. Homeowner Valuation Impact 

Residents expressed that the land was advertised as a common area and enticed sells. Many residents 

claimed they purchased their specific lot based on this information.  Concern was raised that home 

values could decrease with this land being taken away and used to build a new home instead.  

Resident Kathi Pagano requested of Mr. Evans to provide a homeowner valuation impact study from an 

entity with no ties to him.  Mr. Evans did not give an answer as to whether he would provide this.  

7. Drainage Easement  

There was discussion regarding water backing up and not flowing well in drainage easement between 

Lot 52 and proposed Lot 78.  Concern was raised regarding how the water will flow once the retention 

pond is filled at the completion of construction.  

There was a discussion regarding 20 ft drainage easement between Lots 46 and 47.  One concern 

raised was that the storm runoff would be directed to the proposed septic field for proposed Lot 78 

which runs alongside the proposed nature trail.  Questions were raised concerning sanitation and if 

this would create more standing water. Concern was raised about how this would impact the proposed 

accessibility and use of the proposed trail and access to proposed open space.   

8. Impervious Surface 

A question was raised regarding the impervious surface for each lot. Mr. Lane and Mr. Evans explained 

that each lot was allotted 4,288 square feet of impervious surface. Mr. Lane and Mr. Evans assured 

those in attendance that the new lot in question at proposed Lot 78 would not affect the current 



5 
 

impervious surface amount and that each lot would still remain at 4,288 square feet. 

Resident Malinda Johnson asked if Mr. Evans would be open to residents making a fair offer to purchase 

proposed Lot 78. Ms. Johnson explained this offer was something that she just thought of and it would 

have to be agreed upon by the residents, but to hypothetically mitigate the current situation, she posed 

the question to Mr. Evans. Mr. Evans responded he would have to think about that. Mr. Evans was asked 

how much the lot would be in price. Mr. Evans responded he would have think about that and get back 

with residents at a later time. 

9. Maintenance of proposed open spaces 

Questions were raised regarding who is obligated to maintain these spaces.  Land is currently owned 

by developer and not HOA. Many residents were mistakenly under the impression that proposed Lot 78 

and other open spaces (entrance to Hannah’s Creek) were already deeded over and owned by the HOA. 

Mr. Evans explained this was not true and his company was the owner. Residents countered that they 

should no longer, currently and prospectively, be funding any maintenance of these spaces. Mr. Evans 

gave no response and no resolution was obtained at this time.  

10. Minutes 

Resident Misty Jackson asked who was taking the minutes and Mr. Lane, who was presenting the 

meeting stated he would take care of the minutes.  Jay McLeod said he was keeping notes.  The 

residents were informed that the minutes would be available. 

11. Petition 

Darryl D Evans was asked if he received a copy of the Petition in the private meeting he had with HTR, 

James Libscomb and two (2) HOA Board Members and he confirmed receipt of the Petition. 

   



































-----Original Message----- 
From: Keith Pagano <keithpagano@aol.com> 
To: jwmcleod <jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org> 
Sent: Mon, Oct 19, 2015 4:42 pm 
Subject: Proposed Lot 78, Hannah's Creek Lot 52 submitting questions and concerns for Oct 26 Hearing 

 

Katherine Pagano 

66 Concord Court (Lot #52, Phase 1) 

Clayton, NC 27520 

  

October 19, 2015 

  

Town of Clayton 

111 East Second Street 

Post Office Box 879 

Clayton, NC 27528 

  

Attn : Jay McLeod 

Re: Major Subdivision Application by True Line Surveying for Darryl D. Evans for proposed lot #78 
in Hannah’s Creek Subdivision, Clayton, NC 

   

Dear Jay McLeod, 

  

With regard to the above referenced subject matter and the attached, I want to share concern and input to 
the Planning Board for consideration and review at the October 26, 2015 Public Hearing. 

There are inherent water drainage issues that occur from the north side of Merlot Court, to the east side 
of Vinyard Dr and carry through to Concord Ct. The 20’ drainage easement that sits between lot 52 and 
Proposed lot 78 is always wet and marshy even when it is not raining. When it rains the water flow can 
easily get to 5’ wide and 24 to 30” deep in this drainage easement. There is a huge sediment / retention 
pond that sits directly behind lot #52 and historically full of water and loaded with cat tail vegetation. Once 
that sediment / retention pond is filled by the developer, it will take some time for the topography to settle 
and the natural water flow re-establish itself. How can any perk or storm water evaluation occur for 
proposed Lot #78 when the abutting environment is knowingly going to change as soon as the sediment / 
retention pond is filled. 

The proposed Lot 78 hand out (showing walking trail and septic layout) in the True Line Meeting on 10/14 
is not the same map that is submitted in the Oct 1, 2015 application. The major subdivision application 
was made available after the True Line Meeting on 10/14 so here are some questions with regard to the 
application: 

  

Section: 

Required information: 

6. Preliminary Plat Subdivision Requirements Checklist form, completed and signed is not checked off. 

Page 1 of 3 
 

mailto:keithpagano@aol.com
mailto:jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org


11. Wastewater allocation request OR verification of wastewater allocation is marked N/A - How come? 

Section: 

Major Subdivision - Preliminary Plat Requirements Checklist 

- Item 11 – Why is this section marked as N/A? 

-Item 11 Within Town Limits of ETJ appears to be checked N/A but the actual check mark does not 
appear in the box allocated.  Isn't Hannah's Creek in the ETJ? 

-Item 11 - Sewer provider is not stated 

-Item 11 -impervious for overall development and lot is not indicated 

Item 11- Maximum allowable impervious is not shown 

- Item 11 – Existing use vs proposed use not provided sufficiently and is misleading.  

- The last plat map (dated Feb 21, 2005) of the application does not represent the current open space 
boundaries nor its characteristics.  

-The wetlands are depicted in an area that differ from the recorded Plat. 

-.Lot 55 is not accurately depicted plat map dated Feb 21, 2005. This lot was changed prior to the official 
recording of Phase 1 and should have no direct correlation/decision on Phase 3 or the newly proposed 
Lot 78. 

- Lot 78 does not indicate septic layout or proposed community area changes. 

-Item 19 – There is insufficient information of existing and proposed rights-of-way, easements, and public 
use areas. Existing clear land “common” areas have been replaced by a combination of wetlands, heavily 
wooded areas, non-buildable land, or areas not accessible to the community. 

- Item 29 – Location, purpose, and dimensions of non-residential areas are not spelled out appropriately 
and therefore, do not designate responsible parties. 

-Item 31 – Proposed stormwater retention/detention features and dimensions are not reflected. This is an 
area of known water drainage/retention problem areas that also is near a protected wetland and a current 
retention pond. 

- Item 38 and 39, 40. – No information on landscaping shared. 

- Item 41 – There are no details regarding the topography, but the application (and the presentation 
provided by True Line Surveying proposes swapping out clear, open land with combined land consisting 
of wetlands, heavily wooded, gas line easements and low lying drainage easement areas. 

- Item 42 – Missing information on water/sewer and pipeline gas infrastructure easements. 

- Item 49 – Missing existing and proposed changes to drainage structures. There is currently a retention 
pond in the drainage easement closest to protected wetlands. 

-Item 51 – Missing existing and proposed easements for the plan presented by True Line on 10/14. 
Again, the application does not match the proposal presented in the meeting on 10/14. 

-Item 54 – Missing storm water management system information in an area that contains a 
retention/detention pond next to wetlands that have a history of drainage issues. 

As mentioned above, the plat maps presented in the application are not accurate for the current existing 
neighborhood. Also, the proposed plat changes proposed for Lot #78 and the new neighborhood common 
areas do not represent what True Line/Darryl D. Evans Inc presented during the 10/14 meeting. 

There is a page omitted from the packet in the “Town of Clayton Subdivision Approval Sub 08-01 
Granted” section. It is page 2 of 4. 

  

Can the Town confirm with the following department if a determination of stream buffer was applied for:  

Page 2 of 3 
 



James R. Graham Jr. 

Environmental Specialist 

Raleigh Regional Office 

NCDENR-Division of Water Resources 

3800 Barrett Drive 

Raleigh, NC 27609 

(919) 791-4256 

  

James.Graham@ncdenr.gov 

  

Thanking you in advance for taking the time to thoroughly review all the questions and concerns. 

  

Best regards, 

  

  

Katherine Pagano 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

mailto:James.Graham@ncdenr.gov














Hi Jay, 
 
Thanks for your explanation and assistance.  It is greatly appreciated.  Per your request, the community 
will be submitting information today for the Town Planning meeting on 10/26.  Kathi Pagano has 
provided the package to you via email. 
 
However, I will not be able to attend the 10/26 meeting and would like to submit my own 
comments/concerns in reference to the application dated 10/1/2015 that was submitted by True Line 
Surveying and Darryl D. Evans, Inc.  The comments/concerns are specific to my residence, Lot # 60. 
 
Attached is information that I would like to be submitted to the Clayton Town board for review as it 
relates to my Lot # 60 and the concerns with the presently submitted application.  There are three 
attachments/packages provided: 
 

1) Cover Letter 
2) Letter Concerning Application 
3) Major Subdivision application submitted on 10/1/2015. 

 
Can you let me know if this will be included as review for the Clayton Town board? 
 
Thanks in advance for your correspondence. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Steve Warren 
65  Concord Ct 
Clayton, NC 27520 
Lot #60 
(919) 333-2318 (m) 
(919) 550-9353 (h) 
 
P.S. – Copies of these attachments are being hand delivered to the Town office today. 
 



Steve Warren 

65 Concord Ct 

Clayton, NC 27520 

October 19, 2015 

Mr. McLeod 

Planner 

Town of Clayton 

111 East Second Street 

PO Box 879 

Clayton, NC 27528 

Dear Mr. McLeod: 

I am writing you in reference to the Major Subdivision application submitted by True Line 

Surveying on behalf of Darryl D. Evans, Inc. on 10/1/2015.  The application is attached to this 

email as Attachment #1 for reference.  Due to prior plans that cannot be changed, I will be 

unable to attend the 10/26 Planning Board meeting where this subject will be discussed.  As 

such, I wanted to provide feedback on the application/proposal that is under consideration from 

the board.  Please provide this letter to the Board for review prior to the 10/26 Planning Board. 

As a precursor to the feedback/concerns below, I would like to state that my wife and I were one 

of the original buyers in the Hannah’s Creek subdivision and reside in Lot #60 diagonally across 

from the proposed lot #78.  Our lot has had water drainage issues (as well as septic line mis-

representation) that were not fully disclosed during the sales/closing of our property.  These 

include the discovery of old drainage/sewage pipe buried on lots 52, 60, 61 and proposed new lot 

#78 that was broken during the construction of drainage easements for Phase 1 of the Hannah’s 

Creek Subdivision.  Additionally, a sink hole was discovered on lot 64 directly leading to the old 

terracotta pipe that was through my property (Lot #60). 

As a result of the above mentioned, I have concerns with the application of proposed lot #78 and 

how it will affect existing water issues for not only the land on proposed lot #78, but the current 

drainage issues experienced in the community and specific to the drainage easement between lots 

60, 61, 63, and 64.  In reviewing the application submitted by True Line and Darryl D. Evans, it 

does not appear that the application has been submitted with all complete and/or relevant 

information.  Below are the items requested in the application, but do not appear to be addressed. 

 



Mr. McLeod 

October 19, 2015 

Page 2 

1)  The following checklist items in the application are not complete and/or incomplete: 

a. Item 11 – Why is this section marked as N/A? 

b. Item 11 - Sewer provider is not provided. 

c. Item 11 – Existing use vs proposed use not provided sufficiently and is 

misleading.   

i. The last plat map of the application does not reflect the current open space 

boundaries nor its characteristics. 

ii. Lot 55 is falsely represented on the last page.  This lot was changed prior 

to the official recording of Phase 1 and should have no direct 

correlation/decision on Phase 3 or the newly proposed Lot 78. 

iii. Lot 78 does not indicate septic plan or proposed community area changes. 

iv. The wet land areas are depicted differently on the two plat maps enclosed 

in the application. 

v. Proposed Plat in application is not what was presented by True Line 

during the public meeting on 10/14. 

d. Item 19 – There is inadequate information of existing and proposed rights-of-way, 

easements, and public use areas.  Existing clear land “common” areas have been 

replaced by a combination of wetlands, heavily wooded areas, non-buildable land, 

or areas not accessible to the community. 

e. Item 29 – Location, purpose, and dimensions of non-residential areas are not 

identified appropriately and thus do not designate responsible parties. 

f. Item 31 – Proposed stormwater retention/detention features and dimensions are 

not reflected.  This is an area of known water drainage/retention problem areas 

that also is near a protected wetland and a current retention pond. 

g. Item 38 and 39, 40. – No information on landscaping provided. 

h. Item 41 – There are no details regarding the topography, but the application (and 

the presentation provided by True Line Surveying proposes swapping out clear, 

open land with combined land consisting of wetlands, heavily wooded, gas line 

easements and low lying drainage easement areas. 

i. Item 42 – Missing information on water/sewer and pipeline gas infrastructure 

easements. 

j. Item 49 – Missing existing and proposed changes to drainage structures.  There is 

currently a retention pond in the drainage easement closest to protected wetlands. 

k. Item 51 – Missing existing and proposed easements for the plan presented by 

True Line on 10/14.  Again, the application does not match the proposal presented 

in the meeting on 10/14. 



Mr. McLeod 

October 19, 2015 

Page 3 

l. Item 54 – Missing storm water management system information in an area that 

contains a retention/detention pond next to wetlands that have a history of 

drainage issues. 

2) As mentioned in parts of item 1, the plat maps presented in the application are not 

accurate for the current existing neighborhood.  Additionally, the proposed plat changes 

proposed for Lot #78 and the new neighborhood common areas do not represent what 

True Line/Darryl D. Evans Inc presented during the 10/14 meeting. 

3) There is a page missing from the packet in the “Town of Clayton Subdivision Approval 

Sub 08-01 Granted” section.  It is page 3 of 4. 

Please advice on the next steps to address the concerns mentioned in this correspondence.  

Sincerely, 

Steve Warren 



From: Keith Pagano
To: darryldevansinc@embarqmail.com
Cc: joshc@viewfusion.com; Jay McLeod
Subject: Fwd: Message To Darryl Evans on Proposal
Date: Friday, November 13, 2015 11:02:39 AM

Hi Darryl,

 

The  proposal that you left in my mailbox was forwarded to Josh as you requested. Please see below.

 

 

-----Original Message-----

From: Joshua Carlisle <joshc@viewfusion.com>

To: Keith Pagano <keithpagano@aol.com>; 

Sent: Thu, Nov 12, 2015 11:46 pm

Subject: Message To Darryl Evans on Proposal

 

  
 

Kathi,

 

Please forward this to Mr. Evans at your convenience. 

 

Thanks!

Josh Carlisle

 

 

 

Mr. Evans,
I wanted to provide you some additional feedback regarding the latest proposal for the common area that was
 discussed at the on-site November 3rd meeting with some of the Hannah’s Creek community residents as well as
 James Lipscomb and Andrew Hodge (of Adams and Hodge Engineering). Although Kathi is still the main point of
 contact for our community’s efforts in this dispute, I felt that I should respond personally since we talked for a good
 bit on exploring some additional options.  
I think those of us who participated in the meeting felt that the initial discussion surrounding the use of lot 73 itself
 was going to have more substance than simply including a few more feet of drainage easement essentially at the
 “trail head” of the original proposed nature trail.  Needless to say that first proposal was not met upon positively by
 the community.  As was mentioned several times the community is and will continue to be open to equitable
 exchanges for what we feel we may loose with the proposed lot 78 application. An equitable exchange would be a
 space of similar size that does not have any building restrictions, is accessible, and is safe.
As I mentioned from the beginning, my personal opinions then and now doesn’t carry any more weight than any
 other community member.  However, since I was the one that started exploring other options with you, I felt I
 should volunteer for collecting the feedback from others in the community.  Over the last week, and since you sent
 the formal proposal to Kathi,  I’ve collected feedback from many members of the community (some who were
 present and others who were not).  Quite honestly this matter has become quite a source of stress and time
 consumption for all the parties involved.  I really have been hopeful to see an equitable arrangement for the
 community so that we could all move past this. With that in mind we made very serious consideration of this offer
 and took quite a bit of time to hash out the details and really make sure this was the right thing for the community
 and generally satisfied our goals for our community.  On first pass, I thought that the clearing of land behind lot 73
 might meet the criteria of an equitable exchange.  However, upon further consideration, discussions and analysis of
 the details of the full proposal, we unfortunately find that this will not be the case. 
 Some of the following reasons were identified:

mailto:keithpagano@aol.com
mailto:darryldevansinc@embarqmail.com
mailto:joshc@viewfusion.com
mailto:jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org


·       Based on conversations with many members of the community, visibility is very important. Visibility
 provides a level of security and safety to the area. On first pass with the property being within line of
 site to both nearby houses and partially Chardonnay Drive it seemed that although the location is less
 than ideal, it may possibly be “enough”.  Unfortunately, there is nothing to prevent homeowners from
 building privacy barriers such as fences and large trees to provide them privacy from the common
 area.  This would lead the common area to once again be a secluded section of land hidden from view
 from both houses and the road leading to safety concerns – the same kind of concerns that were had
 for the nature trail. With this proposed area (behind lot 73), it would allow for the common area to be
 almost surrounded with a wood line, abutting the wetlands with the only open side facing the
 Piedmont gas pipeline easement and the highway 70 bypass with no direct line of sight from a
 neighborhood road or any houses.

·       Many residents feel strongly that there isn’t enough information regarding that area around the
 creek/wetlands to make a true determination on the usability of the proposed space behind lot 73. 
 Additionally, existing permits are outdated, expired, or seemingly unobtainable.   The NC DWQ
 determined the existing buffer to be valid from March 3, 2005 through March 3, 2010. Being that the
 government agencies responsible for the information and validation has changed hands from state, to
 county, and in some cases to township, we would like to see an official updated buffer
 determination.  With the eventual opening of the Concord Ct. easement pond, which currently holds
 a significant amount of rain water the dynamics of the region could potentially change significantly
 with a lot more water going through it.  Also, we have noticed that the drainage easement sitting
 between Lot 46 and 47 (on Chadonney Drive) has been revamped/regraded and banks north at the
 tail east end.  This is in opposition to the 5/14/2014 recorded plat map of Phase Three in which the
 tail east end of the drainage easement banks south.  What is the reason for the easement being
 recorded one way and developed another?  We would also like to know if the drainage easement
 between lot 73 and the Piedmont gas pipeline is designed, graded and established in its final flow
 pattern. The true buffer size and classification (once that is really determined as it should be) could
 make the land completely unusable for any kind of common area development.  This could potentially
 lead to liability for the community in regard to this property and additionally prevent future
 development by the HOA. Quite simply, your response “we’ve done this before” isn’t enough of an
 assurance for the community.

·       Even with inclusion of a small strip of land from lot 73 (mostly a drainage easement) accessibility still
 makes use of both drainage easements and the gas pipeline.  A required buffer goes through this area
 in addition to a utility easement. You informed us during the meeting that none of our use has been
 requested or approved by Piedmont Gas which makes any proposal for any kind of use or
 improvement on that gas pipeline area suspect.  Others still have valid concerns that a simple raised
 path will not be enough to provide adequate accessibility and want to see something more significant.
 The wording in the written offer of “passable access” is ambiguous at best.

·       Without exception, every resident I discussed this with was objectionable to using funds due back to
 the HOA for upkeep and maintenance of your property over the years (originally believed to be HOA
 property) to cover the cost of clearing the land.   They felt this was simply not fair, nor appropriate. 
 Especially with the additional costs of pulling and installing lighting to improve safety, something we
 would not have to do for a common area accessed from the road with coverage by existing street
 lighting.

·       Lastly, and probably legally most problematic is listing the Homeowners Association as the “promisor”
 of this legal document. As part of your written proposal, you are seeking protections that could
 potentially open up the entire HOA to future legal costs in any future dispute and essentially providing
 immunity for you in anything remotely related. You must have some concerns in this regard or you



 wouldn’t have placed such a clause in your proposal.  There is great concern with how the community
 will be left once development is complete and if the HOA or homeowners will be left with a large bill
 after the next wet season or in coming years. A poorly thought out common area only adds to that
 liability .  Finally, and most importantly, every member of the community is aware that you essentially
 still retain control of the HOA in the form of a majority vote making it very questionable whether it’s
 appropriate for the HOA to be any promisor of any legal agreement due to that inherent conflict of
 interest.  This is all reinforced by the fact that an HOA meeting regarding this dispute was requested
 back in September and still has not been scheduled and the management company you appointed for
 some inexplicable reason advised our board that they should not become involved.  With all of this in
 mind we strongly feel that at this time the HOA of Hannah’s Creek is not in any position to sign any
 legal documents regarding this dispute.

 

I honestly do appreciate the candid discussion and exploring options. Unfortunately, in this case it just doesn’t meet
 the communities goal for an equitable exchange.
This common area is a real concern for many in the community and based on our petition, a majority. Just like our
 elected government, many in the community are relying on those of us with some extra time and flexibility to fight
 for what we believe  was promised to us for the common good of the neighborhood.  Please don’t be deceived
 about our commitment when you only see 8 or 9 residents at a meeting held mid-day during the week in the
 pouring rain as you seemed to believe based on your comments.  With only a few normal exceptions this
 community as whole is united in this regard.   It goes beyond simple values of homes, despite what your appraiser
 may say.  If there is no inherent value in a developed common areas (whether that is something as simple as a park
 with a playground or something as developed as a pool) then you would not have developers building them as
 center pieces to their communities, as selling points. They would simply build more houses. To say there is no value
 in this to our community is ludicrous.  We want a heart to our community, we want a place where we can come
 together for community events, where our children can play together, and all the other advantages it holds for the
 entire lifetime of this community – especially a community at our price point. We feel we’ve been very patient for
 many years with you regarding this, giving you flexibility and understanding during the economy’s downturn.
   Although you might get this impression, we don’t begrudge you for wanting to make money, many of us are
 business owners and know the challenges of business and the drive to take advantage of opportunities for profit
 when they arise, but we also understand the value in sticking through with commitments to customers despite
 changing circumstances – that too is good for business in many ways.  You built us a beautiful community and it’s
 attracted some wonderful residents. We just want that keystone – the capstone – that is the community area.
 Please put yourselves in our shoes, put yourselves in the shoes of what you would want to do for your own
 community, and do the right thing by providing us that common area our community’s residents deserve.
 Sincerely,
 Joshua Carlisle
 

 

 

 

 











Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 

 
                                   Planning Board 
                                            November 30, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-56-01-SD 
Project Name: Rhodes Farm Major Subdivision 

 

 
NC PIN / Tag #: 166700-37-5678 / 05H04037D, 1667-57-0686 / 05H04037, 166700-67-4991 / 05H04037C 
Town Limits/ETJ: ETJ 
Overlay: None 
Applicant:  Gray Wolf Development  
Owner: Charles D. Rhodes Trustee 
Location: Located off of Little Creek Church Road, on the corner of Peele Road and Little Creek Church 

Road 
 
Public Noticing:  

 Neighborhood meeting November 10, 2015 

 Sign posted November 8, 2015 

 Letters mailed prior to December 24, 2015 

 Newspaper ad published prior to December 24, 2015 
 

REQUEST: Conventional subdivision with 41 single family detached homes.  

 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 

P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 

Fax:  919-553-1720 



Staff Report 

12-05-05-SD East Village Walk 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

SITE DATA: 
Acreage: 51.32 acres  
Existing Use: Vacant 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Residential-Estate Vacant 

South Residential-Estate Vacant, Single-Family Homes 

East Residential-Estate Single-Family Homes 

West Residential-Estate Vacant 

  

 

DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Proposed Uses: Single-Family Homes 

Buildings: 40 dwelling units 

Density/Intensity: .77 dwelling units per acre 

Number of Stories: Maximum height of 35 feet 

Required Parking: 2 spaces per unit 

Proposed Parking:        2 spaces per unit 

Fire Protection: The Town of Clayton Fire Department will provide fire protection.  

Access/Streets:  There will be five access points, with only one functioning initially. 

Water/Sewer Provider: County Water and Septic 

Electric Provider: Duke Energy 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is proposing to develop 40 single-family lots on 51.92 acres of land located in an R-E zoning district 
off of Little Creek Church Road. The subject site includes three separate parcels that will be recombined to 
create the development tract. There is currently an existing single-family home located on the subject parcels, 
and the lot on which this home is located upon will be recombined with Lot 26. The mail kiosk for the 
development will be located in an area deeded to the Homeowner’s Association. 
 
Overall, the average size of the lots will be 1.29 acres, with a minimum size of 30,000 square feet which meets 
the minimum lot size requirement when public water (provided by Johnston County) and septic systems are 
utilized. 
 



Page 3 of 5 

 

 

Because it is part of an R-E zoning district, the minimum dwelling unit size will be 1,400 square feet. The 
subdivision will have five access points, one a main access off of Little Creek Church Road and the other four in 
the form of stub-outs connecting to adjacent properties to the north and south.  
 

Consistency with Adopted Plans 
 

 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
The 2040 Comprehensive Plan designates these parcels, as the majority of the surrounding parcels, as 
“Agricultural Residential”. The proposed development is consistent with what the 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan envisions for these parcels, and the surrounding parcels. The intent of the “Agricultural Residential” 
designation is to maintain the rural character in areas of Clayton. The proposed development’s low 
density of 0.77 units/acre fulfills this intent.  
 

 
 

 Unified Development Code 
The proposed development is generally consistent with the requirements of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC). The applicant is requesting two waivers from the requirements to build sidewalks and 
provide curb-and-gutter roadways. The sidewalk waiver includes the internal roads and the sidewalk 
along Little Creek Church Road frontage. 

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The properties surrounding the subject parcel are primarily vacant, with some single-family residences. The low 
density of the proposed development makes it compatible with these surrounding land uses. 
 
Landscaping and Buffering 
The applicant will provide one street tree per lot, as required by Town of Clayton’s Unified Development Code. 
The applicant is also proposing a Class “A” landscaping buffer along Little Creek Church Road, which is consistent 
with the UDC. 
 
Recreation and Open Space 
This is a conventional subdivision, so the applicant will be paying fee-in-lieu for recreation. 
 
Environmental 
A total of 0.217 acres, located along the western most portion of the proposed development, is located in the 
100 Year Flood Zone. The only lot affected by this is Lot 26 which is to be recombined with the lot of the existing 



Page 4 of 5 

 

 

single-family residence on the parcels. While Lot 26 will have an existing single-family residence located on it 
after the recombination, no further development activity is proposed to occur. 
 
Access/Streets  
There are five proposed access points to the subdivision. The main access will be located off of Little Creek 
Church Road. The other four access points will be provided in the form of stub-outs at the ends of “Street C” and 
“Street F”, connecting to the properties to the north and south of the proposed development. These stub-outs 
will be utilized in event that the adjacent parcels are developed in the future.  
 
The applicant is proposing to construct a swale/ditch roadway system with no curb and gutter, as the proposed 
streets will not connect to any existing curb-and-gutter (Little Creek Church Rd is a ditch-and-swale section). 
Planning staff is recommending fee-in-lieu for all sidewalks. (§155.602(B)(2)(b)). 

 
Multi-Modal Access 
No sidewalks are proposed in the development, and no sidewalks will be provided along Little Creek Church 
Road either. The applicant is requesting to pay fee-in-lieu instead of providing sidewalks based on the following 
code criteria: 

 Within the development, main road coming from Little Creek Church Rd, §155.602(B)(2)(b)4.A. 

 Within the development, stub-outs to adjacent parcels, §155.602(B)(2)(b)4.B. 

 Along Little Creek Church Rd, §155.602(B)(2)(b)3. 
 
Garbage / Recycling 
Residents will contract individually for service (outside of Town Limits). 
 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
The applicant is requesting a ditch/swale road due to the rural characteristics of the proposed development, and 
that it will connect to Little Creek Church Road, which also lacks curb-and-gutter. The applicant is also requesting 
a waiver (fee-in-lieu) from 155.602(H)(1) requiring sidewalks be installed throughout the development due to 
the lack of curb & gutter. 
 

 

CONSIDERATIONS:  
 The applicant is requesting Preliminary Subdivision Plat approval for a 41 single-family residential 

subdivision.  

 The applicant is requesting waivers from: 
o Providing curb-and-gutter streets. 
o Providing sidewalk along Little Creek Church Road. 
o Providing internal sidewalks, both along the main road and secondary stub-outs. 

 This plan is subject to final approval by Town Council. 
 

 

FINDINGS: 
The applicant has addressed the Major Subdivision Approval Criteria outlined in UDC Section 155.706.  The 
applicant’s Findings of Fact are incorporated into the record as an attachment to the Staff Report. 
 

  



Page 5 of 5 

 

 

CONDITIONS: 
 
If approved, staff recommends the following conditions be applied to the approval of the preliminary subdivision 
plan: 
 

1. Following Board approvals, three copies of the final Preliminary Subdivision Plan meeting the 
requirements of the Conditions of Approval shall be submitted to the Planning Department for final 
approval. The conditions of approval shall be recorded on the plans before final approval is granted. 

2. All development fees shall be paid prior to final plat recordation. 

3. The final plat and subsequent development of the site shall be consistent with the specifications of the 
approved Preliminary Subdivision Plan. Modifications shall require additional approvals pursuant to 
Section 155.706 of the Unified Development Code. 

4. All signs shall require review/approval pursuant to UDC Section 155.713. 

5. A homeowners’ association document (if applicable) shall be reviewed by staff and recorded prior to 
final plats. Such document shall assure responsibility for maintenance of all common facilities and 
provide adequate means for funding to do so. 

6. The landscaping buffer along Little Creek Church Road shall be installed prior to the issuance of any 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

7. Recreation fees shall be paid as fee-in-lieu, prior to plat recordation. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval with conditions of the proposed preliminary subdivision plat of the subject 
parcel. 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1.) Staff report 
2.) Maps 
3.) Application 
4.) Waiver Requests 
5.) Neighborhood Meeting Materials 
6.) Preliminary subdivision plan 



R-E

PEELE RD  

LITTLE CREEK CHURCH RD  

R-E

PEELE RD  

LITTLE CREEK CHURCH RD  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-56-01-SD Rhodes Farm Major Subdivision
Request: Develop 41 single-family lots on 51.32 acres of land

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Gray Wolf Development
Property Owner: Charles D. Rhodes Trustee
Parcel ID Numbers: 166700-37-5678, 1667-57-0686, 166700-67-4991
Tag #: 05H04037D, 05H04037, 05H04037C 10/28/15

US 70 HWY W
PEELE RD  

PONY FARM RD  LITTLE CREEK CHURCH RD  0 0.70.35
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 1,000500
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SUBDIVISIONS\MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS\2015\15-56-01-SD Rhodes Farm Major Subdivision\Maps\StaffReportMap.mxd

PEELE RD  

LITTLE CREEK CHURCH RD  

Agricultural and Rural Residential

Low Density Residential

PEELE RD  

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 1,000500
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

Site
Special Use District

Thorough Fare Overlay
Scenic Highway Overlay

± ±

± ±



































TRIANGLE CIVILWORKS, P.A. 
211 TYLER DRIVE 

SMITHFIELD, N.C.  27577 
Phone or Fax:  (919) 209-9955 

 

 

 
October 28, 2015 

 

 

James L Jr. & Cindy Peele 

3913 Robin Lane 

Clayton, NC  27520 

 

Reference:  Rhodes Farm Subdivision 

 

Dear Clayton Area Property Owner, 

 

The purpose of this letter is to notify you of an application filed with the Town of Clayton for a 

land use proposal involving property adjacent to, or in close proximity to, property shown in 

your ownership by Johnston County tax records.  Per Town of Clayton regulations, a 

neighborhood meeting will be held to provide information to area residents about the nature of 

the proposal.  A representative of the applicant will be present to explain their application, 

answer questions, and solicit comments. 

 

Date of Meeting:  November 10, 2015 

 

Location:   The Clayton Center – York Room 

 

Time:    6:00 pm 

 

Type of Application:  Major Subdivision 

 

General Description: Gray Wolf Development is constructing a residential subdivision 

as shown on the attached plan. 

 

If you have any questions prior to or after this meeting, you may contact us at (919) 209-9955. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Dan Simmons 

Vice President 

Triangle Civilworks, PA 

 

Cc:  Clayton Planning Department 

















Staff  Report 

15-45-03-SUP 

Page 1 of 5 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
November 30, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-45-03-SUP 
Project Name: Hocutt Baptist Church Western Parking Special Use Permit 

 
NC PIN / Tag #: 165916-83-9670/05023001A, 165916-93-0614/05023002A, 165916-93-0710/05023003A, 

165916-93-1726/05023003A 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: None 
Applicant:  Green Engineering, PLLC 
Owner: Hocutt Baptist Church 
Location: 250, 214, 210 South Roberson Street 
 
Public Noticing:  

 Neighborhood meeting October 29, 2015 

 Sign posted prior to November 20, 2015 

 Newspaper ad prior to December 24, 2015 
 
REQUEST:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to use the subject parcels as a parking lot for Hocutt 
Baptist Church.  

 

SITE DATA: 
Acreage: .7847 Acres 
Existing Use: Single-Family Residences/Vacant 

 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 

P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 

Fax:  919-553-1720 



Staff  Report 

15-45-03-SUP 

Page 2 of 5 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Residential-8 (R-8) & Residential-8-Special Use 
District (R-8 SUD) 

Single-Family Residences 

South Office-Institutional (O-I) Single-Family Residences, Church 

East Neighborhood-Business (B-2) Church, Residential 

West Residential-8 (R-8) Single-Family Residences 

  

 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT DATA:  

Proposed Uses: Parking Lot 

Buildings: 0 

Fire Protection: Town of Clayton 

Electric Provider: Town of Clayton 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting a special use permit in order to develop the subject parcels to be used as a parking 
lot for Hocutt Baptist Church. These parcels were recently rezoned to Office-Institutional-Special Use District (O-
I-SUD). The proposed use would add additional parking for the church during all services. The applicant has also 
submitted a Major Site Plan application for the parking lot, which is running concurrently with this Special Use 
Request. 



Staff  Report 

15-45-03-SUP 

Page 3 of 5 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 
 
Consistency with Adopted Plans: 

 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
The 2040 Comprehensive Plan designates this parcel of land as “Downtown Residential”. The majority of 
the surrounding land is also designated as “Downtown Residential”, with the properties to the east 
designated as “Downtown Core”. The proposed request partially compatible with the Future Land Use 
Map, in that it residential supportive and adjacent to the Downtown Core. The parking lot is part of a 
greater plan by Hocutt Baptist Church to redevelop and expand the church’s campus. While this use 
needs to be limited so that it does not encroach further into the “Downtown Residential” areas, it is 
consistent with the current developmental trend.  
 

 Unified Development Code 
The proposed development is consistent with and meets the applicable requirements of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC). 

 
Background & History  
In 2015, Town Council approved the rezoning request of the subject parcels from Residential-8 (R-8) to Office-
Institutional-Special Use District (O-I-SUD).  This makes these parcels able to be developed for uses supporting 
the Office-Institutional use of the Church. 
 
Over the past two years, Hocutt Baptist Church has razed the residential buildings that were on these four 
parcels, in anticipation of creating a parking lot to support their main campus. Hocutt Church is an urban church, 
and has been on its present site for a long time. Churches in these conditions, and with expanding parishioner 
base, are often hard-pressed to find adequate parking to support their growth.  While town staff understands 
the need for additional parking, the existing residential neighborhood needs to be buffered and protected from 
further encroachment. 
 
Associated Site Plan 
The applicant is requesting Major Site Plan approval (15-42-02-SP) running concurrently with this request. The 
proposed parking lot will have two access points, one located off of West Horne Street and the other located off 
of West Second Street. The parking lot will consist of a total of 58 parking spaces, and the applicant will be 
adding in a 5’ concrete sidewalk along South Roberson Street, East Second Street, and West Horne Street. The 
applicant will also be adding a 10’ landscaping buffer located along the northern property line in order to 
provide screening from the residentially zoned parcels to the north. 



Staff  Report 

15-45-03-SUP 

Page 4 of 5 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 
Recreation and Open Space 
N/A  
 
Environmental  
N/A 
 
Signs 
The applicant has not submitted any proposed signage for the subject property. All signs will be reviewed 
separately through the Planning Department and will be required to adhere to UDC requirements. A location for 
signage has been identified on the corner of the lot in an appropriate location.  
 
Architecture 
N/A 
 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
None 
 

 
FINDINGS 
When considering a Special Use Permit application, the Town Council shall consider specific Findings of Fact. A 
Special Use which fails to meet any of these Findings shall be deemed adverse to the public interest and shall 
not be approved.  The applicant has adequately addressed the Findings of Fact expressly established by Chapter 
155.711(I) of the UDC, and these Findings are accepted as part of the completed application.  
 

 

CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

 The Town Council approves Special Use Permits. The Planning Board shall make a recommendation to 
the Town Council. 

 This Special Use Permit, if approved, will be governed by the associated Site Plan (15-45-02-SP). 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending that the above referenced Special Use Permit (15-45-03-SUP) be approved with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The development of the site is limited to the site design and uses approved by the Planning Board. 
Modifications to the approved site plan shall require review and approval in accordance with Section 
155.707 of the Unified Development Code. 
 

2. Following Board approvals, three copies of the Final Site Plan, Landscape Plan and Architectural 
Elevations meeting the requirements of the Conditions of Approval shall be submitted to Planning 
Department for final approval. 
 
 



Staff  Report 

15-45-03-SUP 

Page 5 of 5 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 
 

3. A site/landscape inspection by the Planning Department shall be required prior to issuance of a 
certificate of occupancy. All site improvements shall be installed prior to the site inspection. 
 

4.  A Zoning Compliance Permit shall be required prior to issuance of any building permits. 
 

5. Development fees shall be paid to the Town prior to issuance of any building permits. 
 

6. All signage for the site shall require a sign permit and shall comply with requirements of the Unified 
Development Code. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1) Staff Report Map 
2) Application 
3) Neighborhood Meeting Materials  
4) Associated Site Plan, 15-45-02-SP 

 



O-I SUD
R-8 SUD

O-I

B-2

R-8

SECOND ST  

HORNE ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

R-8 SUD

O-I SUD

O-I

B-2
R-8

SECOND ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

HORNE ST  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-45-03-SUP Hocutt Baptist Western Parking Special Use
Request: Special Use approval to develop the subject parcels into a 
parking lot for Hocutt Baptist Church

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Green Engineering
Property Owner: Hocutt Baptist Church
Parcel ID Numbers: 165916-83-9670, 165916-93-0614, 1655916-93-0710. 165916-93-1726
Tag #s: 05023001A, 05023001, 05023002, 05023003 11/19/15

MAIN ST  

HORNE ST  

SECOND ST  

WILLOW DR  
PARK DR  

FIRST ST  

BROOK ST  

VIRGINIA ST  

0 0.10.05
Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 200100
Feet

0 200100
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SPECIAL USE\2015\15-45-03-SUP Hocutt Baptist Western Parking Special Use\Maps\StaffReportMap_Hocutt Baptist Special Use.mxd

HORNE ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

SECOND ST  
Downtown CoreDowntown Residential

Downtown Core

SECOND ST  

HORNE ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

MAIN ST  

VIRGINIA ST  

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 200100
Feet

0 250125
Feet

± ±

± ±
Site

Special Use District
Thorough Fare Overlay

Scenic Highway Overlay

















From: Sean Hein
To: Jay McLeod
Subject: Fwd: Sign-up Sheet
Date: Monday, November 23, 2015 8:54:16 AM
Attachments: ATT00001.htm

SKM_C454e15112308420.pdf
ATT00002.htm

Jay,

Enclosed is the meeting roster. Mr. Smith is a deacon from the Missionary Baptist Church
 next door.  He said he just wanted to see what we were doing.  We showed him the parking
 lot plan, spoke briefly about hopeful future plans.  Pastor Steve of Hocutt told him that his
 church would be welcome to use our parking lot anytime we were not. He did not express any
 concerns. 

Thank you,

Sean P Hein, PLS, CFS
Green Engineering, PLLC

Begin forwarded message:

From: Penny Glover <p.glover@greeneng.com>
Date: November 23, 2015 at 8:43:35 AM EST
To: Sean Hein <s.hein@greeneng.com>
Subject: Sign-up Sheet

 
 
Penny B. Glover
 

mailto:s.hein@greeneng.com
mailto:jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org
mailto:p.glover@greeneng.com
mailto:s.hein@greeneng.com




 


Green Engineering, PLLC


Post Office Box 609


Wilson, North Carolina 27893


252-237-5365


p.glover@greeneng.com


 


 


 


 























W
E
S
T
 H

O
R
N
E
 S

T
R
E
E
T

S
O

U
T
H
 R

O
B
E
R
T
S
O

N
 S

T
R
E
E
T

W
E
S
T
 S

E
C
O
N
D
 S

T
R
E
E
T

81
2

"

51
2

"

51
2

"

1"

6"

SCALE 1/25

2"

5"34"

V3215SQ-6

108"

72"

47"

953
8

"

Solid T & G w/Square Lattice Top 6'x8'

WWW.ILLUSIONSFENCE.COM

Date:
Customer:
Customer Code:
Contact:
Fax:
E-mail:

STYLE # DESCRIPTION

NOTES: 1. ALL ILLUSIONS VINYL FENCES ARE ASTM F964-09 COMPLIANT
2. Available in Mix 'N' Match color variations
3. Includes metal reinforcement in bottom rail

ILLUSIONS FENCE � 2010

Post Options:

1) 5" x 5" - .140 wall 

2) 5" x 5" H.D, - .250 wall

3) Majestic™8" x 8" -.250 wall

Post Cap
Options

Palace Solar
V55P

Solar
V55SO

Teardrop
V55TD

Coachman
V55CM

Ball
V55BC

French Gothic
V55FG

Flat
V55FO

New England
V55NE

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

OF

SHEET

REVISIONS:

PROJECT #

TO
N
Y
 M
. 
TA
TE
 L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
E
 A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
TU
R
E
, 
P
A

5
0
1
1
 S
O
U
TH
P
A
R
K
 D
R
IV
E
, 
S
TE
. 
2
0
0
 -
 D
U
R
H
A
M
, 
N
C
 2
7
7
1
3

p
: 
(9
1
9
) 
4
8
4
-8
8
8
0
  
  
f:
 (
9
1
9
) 
4
8
4
-8
8
8
1
  
 e
: 
to
n
y
@
tm
tl
a
.c
o
m

11/19/2015

T.M.T.

C
la
y
to
n
, 
N
o
rt
h
 C
a
ro
lin
a
 2
7
5
2
0

3
1
4
 W
e
st
 H
o
rn
e
 S
tr
e
e
t

H
O
C
U
TT
 B
A
P
TI
S
T 
C
H
U
R
C
H

1

LA
N
D
S
C
A
P
E
 P
LA
N

1" = 20'

15123

L-1

S

W

N

E

SHRUB PLANTING  DETAIL

GENERAL PLANTING NOTES

SCOPE OF WORK:
Furnish all labor, materials, and equipment required or indicated by the drawings and specifications to complete the work 
including installation of all trees, shrubs, groundcover, annuals, seed, sod and mulch.

MATERIALS AND WORK:
The selection of all materials and the execution of all work required under the contract shall be subject to approval by the 
owner. The owner shall have the right to reject and and all materials and any and all work, which in his opinion, does not 
meet the requirements of the contract.

PLANT MATERIALS:
All plant materials shall be nursery grown, freshly dug in the field, naturally shaped, well branched, fully foliated when in leaf  
with fully developed root systems. Trees must be self supporting, with straight trunks and leaders in tact. All plants must be 
free of disease, insect infestation or their eggs and shall have been grown in climatic conditions similar to those of the 
project site

PLANT SIZE:
Specified sizes indicates the minimum allowable size at planting. Where container and height/spreads are indicated for a 
single species, both size requirements shall be met When only plant height or spread are indicated, container size shall be 
based on AAN standards. 

ORGANIC MATTER:
Aged manure, compost or  pine bark fines, at the option of the contractor, material shall be air dried, finely shredded and 
suitable for horticultural purposes and shall contain no more than 35% moisture content by weight. 

PINE BARK MULCH:
All pine bark mulch shall be clean, double ground, fine textured nugget mulch with minimal amounts of sapwood content.

TURF AREAS:
Prior to any seeding or sod application, verify that all trenching and land disturbing activities have been completed. Ensure 
all areas are free of stones, large soil clods and any other construction debris.

NOTES:
1. Contractor shall contact utility locator service to verify all subsurface utilities prior to and digging or construction on 
the site. Contractor shall be responsible for any damage resulting from his activities.
2. Plant material on this site must be installed in conformance with the general planting notes and details on this plan.
3. All sod to be Rebel Fescue IV, Turf Gem, Lesco or equal. All seed to be Rebel Fescue IV, Turf Gem, Lesco or equal @ 
6 lbs. per 1000 s.f. Seed to the limits of disturbance.
4.  All mulch shall be double ground pine bark mulch to a depth of 4".
5. All above ground electrical transformers, dumpsters, and backflow prevention vaalve/hot boxes shall be screened 
from view while maintaining required access to local cose standards and requirements.
7. Do  not change plans without permission from Architect or Owner.  Notify Architect of any discrepancies on the 
plan.

8. Landscape contractor shall provide design build irrigation proposal to the owner for project areas to be specified 

by the owner.

9. Contractor shall provide 6" PVC sleeves under streets and drive aisles for irrigation lines.

TREE PLANTING  DETAILS

GENERAL PLANTING NOTES

11-19-15

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

\\SERVER\Projects\projects\Hocutt Baptist Church\Hocutt Baptist LP-1.dwg



Staff Report 

15-45-02-SP Hocutt Parking Lot 

Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board 

November 30, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Application Number: 15-45-02-SP  
Project Name: Hocutt Baptist Church Western Parking Major Site Plan 

 
NC PIN / Tag #: 165916-83-9670/05023001A, 165916-93-0614/05023002A, 165916-93-0710/05023003A, 

165916-93-1726/05023003A 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: None 
Applicant:  Green Engineering, PLLC 
Owner: Hocutt Baptist Church 
Location: 250, 214, 210 South Roberson Street 
 
Public Noticing:  

 Neighborhood meeting October 29, 2015 

 Sign posted prior to November 20, 2015 
 
REQUEST:  The applicant is requesting approval to develop the subject parcels into a parking lot to be used by 
Hocutt Baptist Church. The request is running concurrently with Special Use Permit (15-45-03-SUP) requesting to 
develop a parking lot on the subject parcels. 

 

SITE DATA: 
Acreage: .7847 Acres 
Existing Use: Vacant 

 
 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 

P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 

Fax:  919-553-1720 



Staff Report 

15-45-02-SP Hocutt Parking Lot 

Page 2 of 5 

 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Residential-8 (R-8) & Residential-8-Special Use 
District (R-8 SUD) 

Single-Family Residences 

South Office-Institutional (O-I) Single-Family Residences, Church 

East Neighborhood-Business (B-2) Commercial 

West Residential-8 (R-8) Single-Family Residences 

  

 
   

 

DEVELOPMENT DATA: 

Proposed Uses: Parking Lot   

Buildings: 0 Buildings 

Proposed Parking: 58 spaces 

Fire Protection: Town of Clayton 

Access/Streets:  Two driveways; one off of West Horne Street and the other off of East Second Street 

Water/Sewer Provider: Town of Clayton 

Electric Provider: Town of Clayton  

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting major site plan approval to develop a parking lot on the subject parcels to be used by 
Hocutt Baptist Church. This parking lot will consist of 58 total parking spaces. This request is running 
concurrently with a Special Use Permit application (15-45-03-SUP) to permit the proposed use of the subject 
parcels.  Upon successful approval, the four parcels will need to be recombined prior to the beginning of 
construction. 
 



Staff Report 

15-45-02-SP Hocutt Parking Lot 

Page 3 of 5 

 
 
Consistency with Adopted Plans: 

 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

 The 2040 Comprehensive Plan designates this parcel of land as “Downtown Residential”. The majority of 
the surrounding land is also designated as “Downtown Residential”, with the properties to the east 
designated as “Downtown Core”. The proposed request partially compatible with the Future Land Use 
Map, in that it residential supportive and adjacent to the Downtown Core. The parking lot is part of a 
greater plan by Hocutt Baptist Church to redevelop and expand the church’s campus. While this use 
needs to be limited so that it does not encroach further into the “Downtown Residential” areas, it is 
consistent with the current developmental trend.  
 

 Unified Development Code 
The proposed development is consistent and meets the applicable requirements of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC). 

 
Background & History  
In 2015, Town Council approved the rezoning request of the subject parcels from Residential-8 (R-8) to Office-
Institutional-Special Use District (O-I-SUD).  This makes these parcels able to be developed for uses supporting 
the Office-Institutional use of the Church. 
 
Over the past two years, Hocutt Baptist Church has razed the residential buildings that were on these four 
parcels, in anticipation of creating a parking lot to support their main campus. Hocutt Church is an urban church, 
and has been on its present site for a long time. Churches in these conditions, and with expanding parishioner 
base, are often hard-pressed to find adequate parking to support their growth.  While town staff understands 
the need for additional parking, the existing residential neighborhood needs to be buffered and protected from 
further encroachment. 
 
Landscaping and Buffering 
The applicant meets all UDC landscaping requirements. The applicant is proposing a Class “C” buffer along the 
northern portion of the property in order to provide screening for the adjacent residentially zoned parcels of 
land. Interior landscaping, along with landscaping along South Robertson Street, will also be provided to fulfill 
UDC landscaping requirements. 
  
Environmental  
N/A. 



Staff Report 

15-45-02-SP Hocutt Parking Lot 

Page 4 of 5 

 
Access/Streets  
The parking lot will have two driveways; one off of West Horne Street and one off of West Second Street.  
 
Multi-Modal Access 
The applicant is proposing to install a 5’ concrete sidewalk along South Robertson Street, and along West Horne 
Street and West Second Street. Crosswalks will be provided at the intersections of South Roberson and West 
Horne, and South Robertson and West Second Street, in order to allow pedestrian crossing to Hocutt Baptist 
Church across the street.  
 
The site should also have a mid-block (mid-parking lot) sidewalk connecting the parking lot with the sidewalk 
along Robertson Street. 
 
Architecture/Design 
A bioretention stormwater feature has been designed into the downhill side of the site, which will capture and 
treat stormwater for the parking lot. An enhanced, 20-foot Class C buffer is also provided along the side of the 
lot directly adjacent to residential uses and zoning. This 20-foot Class C buffer is the largest that can be required 
by the Town, and is provide by the applicant to help mitigate any impact a parking lot may  have on  the existing 
residential neighborhood. The portion of the site facing to the parcel to the south (that is across Horne Street) 
does not have a Class C buffer. Overall, the landscaping adds to the value of the project. 
 
Waivers/Deviations/Variances from Code Requirements 
This parking lot will be accessory to the primary use, which is the Hocutt Baptist Church main campus, across 
Robertson Street. 
 

CONSIDERATIONS:  
 Planning Board approves major site plans. 

 This Site Plan will be contingent upon approval by Town Council of the associated Special Use Permit 
(15-45-03-SUP). 

  

 

FINDINGS: 
 
The applicant has addressed the Major Site Plan Approval Criteria outlined in UDC Section 155.707.  The 
applicant’s Findings of Fact are incorporated into the record as an attachment to the Staff Report. 
 

 
CONDITIONS: 
 
None 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the proposed Major Site Plan (15-45-02-SP).  
 

 



Staff Report 

15-45-02-SP Hocutt Parking Lot 

Page 5 of 5 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1) Staff report maps 
2) Application 
3) Neighborhood Meeting Materials 
4) Site Plan  

 



O-I SUD
R-8 SUD

O-I

B-2

R-8

HORNE ST  

SECOND ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

VIRGINIA ST  

MAIN ST  

R-8 SUD

O-I SUD

O-I

B-2R-8

SECOND ST  

HORNE ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

MAIN ST  

VIRGINIA ST  

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal 
responsibility for the information represented here.

15-45-02-SP Hocutt Baptist Western Parking Major Site Plan
Request: Site Plan approval to develop the subject parcels into a 
parking lot for Hocutt Baptist Church.

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: Green Engineering
Property Owner: Hocutt Baptist Church
Parcel ID Numbers: 165916-83-9670, 165916-93-0614, 1655916-93-0710, 165916-93-1726
Tag #s: 05023001A, 05023001, 05023002, 05023003

11/24/15

MAIN ST  O'NEIL S
T  

FRONT ST  

SECOND ST  HORNE ST  

MOORE ST  

CHURCH ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

MIAL
 ST  CHARLES ST  

US 70 BUS HWY W

CARTER ST  

KENNEL LN  

0 0.550.275 Miles

±
Vicinity Map

0 300150
Feet

0 300150
Feet

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\SITE PLANS\Major Site Plans\2015\15-45-02-SP Hocutt Baptist Church West Parking Lot\Maps\StaffReportMap_Hocutt Parking Lot - Site Plan 15-45-02-SP.mxd

HORNE ST  

SECOND ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

VIRGINIA ST  

MAIN ST  

Downtown CoreDowntown Residential
Downtown Core

SECOND ST  

HORNE ST  

ROBERTSON ST  

MAIN ST  

VIRGINIA ST  

Future Land Use MapAerial Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 300150
Feet

0 300150
Feet

± ±

± ±
Site

Special Use District
Thorough Fare Overlay

Scenic Highway Overlay

NOTE: These houses have since been demolished.



























From: Sean Hein
To: Jay McLeod
Subject: Fwd: Sign-up Sheet
Date: Monday, November 23, 2015 8:54:16 AM
Attachments: ATT00001.htm

SKM_C454e15112308420.pdf
ATT00002.htm

Jay,

Enclosed is the meeting roster. Mr. Smith is a deacon from the Missionary Baptist Church
 next door.  He said he just wanted to see what we were doing.  We showed him the parking
 lot plan, spoke briefly about hopeful future plans.  Pastor Steve of Hocutt told him that his
 church would be welcome to use our parking lot anytime we were not. He did not express any
 concerns. 

Thank you,

Sean P Hein, PLS, CFS
Green Engineering, PLLC

Begin forwarded message:

From: Penny Glover <p.glover@greeneng.com>
Date: November 23, 2015 at 8:43:35 AM EST
To: Sean Hein <s.hein@greeneng.com>
Subject: Sign-up Sheet

 
 
Penny B. Glover
 

mailto:s.hein@greeneng.com
mailto:jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org
mailto:p.glover@greeneng.com
mailto:s.hein@greeneng.com




 


Green Engineering, PLLC


Post Office Box 609


Wilson, North Carolina 27893


252-237-5365


p.glover@greeneng.com


 


 


 


 








































	00 Agenda - PB Meeting 11-30-2015
	AGENDA
	TOWN OF CLAYTON PLANNING BOARD MEETING
	Monday, November 30, 2015
	6:00 PM
	TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	111 E. SECOND STREET
	For Information: (919) 553-5002
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	IV. REPORTS AND COMMENTS
	V. OLD BUSINESS
	VI. NEW BUSINESS
	VII. INFORMAL DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC COMMENT
	VIII. ADJOURN

	01 Planning Board Minutes_20150824 mtg
	02 Hannahs Ck Lot 78 - 13-106-01-SD - Staff Report and Supporting Docs
	02_Hannahs Ck Lot 78 - 13-106-01-SD.p Staff Report and Supporting Docs.pdf
	Neighborhood Meeting package from applicant.pdf
	Neighborhood Meeting package.pdf
	Adams & Hodge Eng..pdf
	VantageSouth Bank.pdf
	Kohn-Ell statements.pdf

	Approval Letter - MSD 2014-07 Hannahs Creek.pdf
	Re:  MSD 2014-07 Hannah’s Creek Subdivision Minor Modification

	Hannah's Creek - Community letters.pdf
	Hannah's Creek -Community plea.pdf
	Hannahs Creek Community Letter_10192015_final.pdf
	True Line Meeting Minutes_10142015_final2.pdf
	HC petition.pdf

	Hannah's Creek - resident Katherine Pagano.pdf
	Hannah's Creek - resident Kathi Pagano.pdf
	-----Original Message----- From: Keith Pagano <keithpagano@aol.com> To: jwmcleod <jwmcleod@townofclaytonnc.org> Sent: Mon, Oct 19, 2015 4:42 pm Subject: Proposed Lot 78, Hannah's Creek Lot 52 submitting questions and concerns for Oct 26 Hearing

	Attachment #2 - HTR Marketing .pdf

	Hannah's Creek - resident Steve Warren.pdf
	Hannah's Creek - resident Steve Warren.pdf
	Hannah's Creek - resident Steve_Warren letter - Lot60.pdf


	Fwd_  Message To Darryl Evans on Proposal
	stream buffer determination - NC DWQ 1 _recd20151117.pdf

	03 Rhodes Farm subdivision - 15-56-01-SD
	03a Staff Report- Rhodes Farm subdivision - 15-56-01-SD.pdf
	03b StaffReportMap_Rhodes Farm Major Subdivision 15-56-01-SD
	03c Application Rhodes Farm Subdivision  15-56-01-SD
	03d Rhodes Farm Waiver Requests & Stormwater Info
	0895_001
	0896_001

	03e Rhodes Farm Neighborhood Meeting 15-56-01-SD
	03f Rhodes Farm Subdivision Plan

	04 Hocutt Parking Lot - Special Use - 15-45-03-SUP
	04a Staff Report_Hocutt Parking Lot - Special Use 15-45-03-SUP
	04b Hocutt Parking Lot - Special Use- Maps
	04c Hocutt Parking Lot -  Special Use Application
	04d Neighborhood Meeting Materials- Hocutt Western Parking Site Plan&Special Use
	Nhood mtg letter
	nhood mtg roster
	Fwd_ Sign-up Sheet

	04e Hocutt Parking Site Plan - Landscape Plan - 15-45-02-SP

	05 Hocutt Parking Lot - Site Plan - 15-45-02-SP
	05a Staff Report_ Hocutt Parking Lot - Site Plan 15-45-02-SP
	05b StaffReportMap_Hocutt Parking Lot - Site Plan 15-45-02-SP
	05c Hocutt Baptist Parking Major Site Plan Application 15-45-02-SP
	05d Neighborhood Meeting Materials- Hocutt Western Parking Site Plan&Special Use
	Nhood mtg letter
	nhood mtg roster
	Fwd_ Sign-up Sheet

	05e Hocutt Parking Site Plan -15-45-02-SP


